MINUTES of MEETING of BUSINESS CONTINUITY COMMITTEE held in the BY SKYPE on THURSDAY, 11 JUNE 2020

Present: Councillor Aileen Morton (Chair)

Councillor Rory Colville
Councillor Robin Currie
Councillor Lorna Douglas
Councillor Kieron Green

Councillor Yvonne McNeilly
Councillor Gary Mulvaney
Councillor Douglas Philand
Councillor Sandy Taylor

Also Present: Councillor Anderson Councillor Lynch

Councillor Armour
Councillor Blair
Councillor Findlay
Councillor Good
Councillor Horn
Councillor Kinniburgh
Councillor Armour
Councillor McCuish
Councillor Moffat
Councillor Redman
Councillor Reid
Councillor Robertson
Councillor Vennard

Attending: Pippa Milne, Chief Executive

Douglas Hendry, Executive Director

Kirsty Flanagan, Interim Executive Director

David Logan, Head of Legal and Regulatory Support

Anne Paterson, Head of Education

Laurence Slavin, Interim Head of Financial Services

Fergus Murray, Head of Development and Economic Growth

Ross McLaughlin, Head of Commercial Services

Shona Barton, Committee Manager Joanna MacDonald, Chief Officer HSCP

Fergus Walker, Revenues and Benefits Manager

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence intimated.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Lorna Douglas declared a non financial interest in item 5(a) (Strategic Events and Festivals Fund) of the Agenda due to her membership of the Helensburgh Winter Festival, she remained in the meeting but took no part in the discussion on this item.

Councillor Jim Findlay declared a non financial interest in Item 11 (Rothesay Pavilion) of the Agenda due to his Council membership of the Board of the Rothesay Pavilion, he remained in the meeting but took no part in the discussion on this item.

3. MINUTES

The Minute of the Business Continuity Committee held on 14 May 2020 was approved as a correct record.

4. DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENTS (DHP) - POLICY AMENDMENT TO CREATE A DHP HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION FUND

The Committee considered a report which provided an update of the DHP policy to allow more support to be provided in exceptional circumstances for claimants affected by the benefit gap.

Decision

The Committee approved the proposed amendments to the policy for awarding Discretionary Housing Payments.

(Ref: Report by Section 95 Officer dated 19 May 2020, submitted)

5. UPDATE ON EVENT GRANT FUNDING TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

The Committee considered a report which provided an overview of the position on event grant funding provided to external organisations in 2020-21.

Decision

The Committee noted the different approaches in terms of the timing of distributing funds and the carry forward to future years and considered the recommendations in the two separate reports on the agenda.

(Ref: Report by Section 95 Officer dated 29 May 2020, submitted)

(a) STRATEGIC EVENTS AND FESTIVALS FUND - PROJECT UPDATE

The Committee considered a report which gave consideration to a Round 3 Strategic Events and Festivals Fund for 2021/22 and provided an update on the Round 2 (2020/21) events, as agreed by the Policy and Resources Committee of 17 December 2019.

Decision

The Committee agreed:-

- 1. That there will be a third round of grant funding for a Strategic Events and Festivals Fund, relating to events to be held in 2021/22, and approved a third round budget allocation of £90,000.
- 2. That the Round 3 2021/22 call for applications will be issued in August 2020, if this timeline is undeliverable this will come back to Members
- 3. To note the current status of Round 2 events, and
- 4. To approve that, for cancelled events, and in order to support the organisation through these unprecedented times, the Council pays a grant to cover costs incurred by the organisation, up to a maximum of 75% of the original grant award.

(Ref: Report by Interim Executive Director with responsibility for Development and Economic Growth dated 20 May 2020, submitted)

(b) COUNCIL'S SUPPORTING COMMUNITIES FUND 2020/21

The Committee considered a report which sought agreement for the Council's response to groups who this year, due to impacts from Covid-19, wish to carry funding forward into 2021/22.

Decision

The Committee agreed:-

- That applicants awarded funding from the Council's Supporting Communities Fund in 2020/21 are allowed to carry forward their project, activity or event as set out in their application, in the following financial year. The deadline to spend would move from 31 March 2021 to 31 March 2022.
- 2. That the applicant group will not be able to apply for funding in 2021/22 for a project / event / activity which duplicates that which has been funded for 2020/21.
- 3. A communication is issued to all successful applicants for 2020/21 advising them of these agreed recommendations and highlighting that their funded project event or activity can be undertaken through different approaches such as on-line to provide as much flexibility as possible to allow it to take place.

(Ref: Report by Chief Executive dated 8 May 2020, submitted)

6. THE EXPANSION OF FUNDED EARLY YEARS LEARNING AND CHILDCARE IN SCOTLAND

The Committee considered a report which provided an update on the progress being made by the Education Service in preparing for the expansion of Early Learning and Childcare (ELC) and the implementation of 1140 hours of funded ELC in Argyll and Bute.

Decision

The Committee:-

- 1. Noted that the Scottish Government have of April 2020, removed the statutory duty to complete the implementation of 1140 hours of ELC available to each eligible child from 1 August 2020.
- Noted Education and Property Service have continued to progress the expansion plans where possible and will be in a position to resume key projects as soon as restrictions on lockdown are lifted.
- 3. Endorsed the significant work the Early Years Team has undertaken in partnership with colleagues from other services in ensuring 1140 hrs could be implemented across Argyll and Bute from August 2020 were there no Covid-19 restrictions.
- 4. Noted the progress of implementation to date.
- Requested that the Executive Director with responsibility for Education brings forward progress updates in relation to the Expansion of Early Learning and Childcare to future meetings as more information is provided from Scottish Government.

(Ref: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Education dated 11 June 2020, submitted)

7. CARE EXPERIENCED CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

The Committee considered a report which updated members with information about interventions being taken within Education Services to ensure that Care Experienced Children and Young People achieve the best possible educational outcomes.

Decision

The Committee:-

- 1. Continued to endorse the work undertaken by Argyll and Bute Education Services as part of the Corporate Parenting Board to improve the educational attainment and life chances of Care Experienced Children and Young People.
- 2. Noted that the spending plan for the grant allocated by Scottish Government to Argyll and Bute for session 2019/20 from the Scottish Attainment Challenge Care Experienced Children and Young People Fund has been produced and monitored by the Education Lead (Principal Teacher) for Looked After Children, in consultation with key partners and specifically the Social Work Lead for Looked After Children, the Chief Education Officer and Chief Social Worker.
- 3. Agreed that the Chief Education Officer, Head of Education; Lifelong Learning and Support continues to provide updates on the improved outcomes for Care Experienced Children and Young People to Corporate Parenting Board and Business Continuity Committee / Community Services Committee.

(Ref: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Education dated 11 June 2020, submitted)

8. DEFERRED ENTRY - RETAINING AT STAGE AND SCHOOL LEAVING DATES

The Committee considered a report which highlighted changes in terminology required within the existing School Leaving Date Policy which has been in place since 2012.

Decision

The Committee agreed to the updated Policy with immediate effect.

(Ref: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Education dated 11 June 2020, submitted)

9. RAPID RE-HOUSING TRANSITION PLAN - ANNUAL UPDATE

The Committee considered a report which detailed activity in relation to the Rapid Rehousing Transition Plan 2019-2024 for Argyll and Bute which was agreed by Council in November 2018

Decision

The Committee:-

- 1. Noted the RRTP activity which took place in 2019/20.
- 2. Agreed to the RRTP annual update which sets out activity for 2020/21.
- 3. Agreed to the Housing First model proposed within the RRTP which will see the Council discharge statutory homeless duties through a different model.

(Ref: Report by Interim Executive Director with responsibility for Development and Economic Growth dated 18 May 2020, submitted)

10. ECONOMIC RECOVERY PLAN UPDATE

The Committee considered a report which concerned the economic recovery of Argyll and Bute which had received a significant setback due to Covid 19 restrictions in common with much of the global economy.

Decision

- a) The Committee considered the contents of the report and endorsed the draft Argyll and Bute Economic Recovery Plan at Appendix A of the report.
- b) Agreed to raise with the Scottish and UK Governments the urgent need to accelerate the implementation of our Rural Growth Deal to ensure it forms part of the local and national recovery from the economic and social impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic

(Ref: Report by Interim Executive Director with responsibility for Development and Economic Growth dated May 2020, submitted)

The Committee resolved in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the press and public for the following item of business on the grounds that it was likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 6&9 respectively of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

E1 11. ROTHESAY PAVILION POSITION STATEMENT

The Committee considered a report which provided Members with an update on the Rothesay Pavilion Adaptive Restoration Project following formal notification that the Principal Contractor had been placed in Administration by tis Board of Directors on 29 April 2020.

Decision

The Committee noted the terms of the report.

(Ref: Report by Executive Director with responsibility for Commercial Services dated 8 May 2020, submitted)